
TENTATIVE AGENDA AND MEETING NOTICE 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2025 AT 5:30 PM 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 AUGUST 5, 2025, REGULAR MEETING
 AUGUST 5, 2025, CLOSED SESSION

1 

3 APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 19, 2025 AGENDA 13 
5:35 4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

 WILL LAST UP TO ONE HOUR, DEPENDING ON THE
NUMBER OF SPEAKERS

CHAIRMAN EGGERS 15 

5:40 5 MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY – REPAIRS AND BID AWARD MS. WENDY PATOPRSTY 17 
5:45 6 SDR FINAL DEBRIS REMOVAL COST (FOLLOW-UP) MR. CHIP PATTERSON 19 
5:50 7 FY26 HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT –

REVISED ALLOCATION 
MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE 21 

5:55 8 SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
A. DODGE DURANGO FLEET PURCHASE AND UPFITTING
B. FORD F-150 FLEET PURCHASE AND UPFITTING
C. PURCHASE OF DUAL-BAND POLICE RADIOS

MAJ. KELLY REDMON 
35 
41 
53 

6:00 9 EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
A. HURRICANE HELENE UPDATE
B. EMS FLEET EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

MR. WILL HOLT 
57 
59 

6:05 10 TAX MATTERS 
A. MONTHLY COLLECTIONS REPORT

MR. TYLER RASH 
63 

6:10 11 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. GUARANTEED ENERGY SAVINGS CONTRACT –

BOARD OF EDUCATION (FOLLOW-UP)
B. NCDOT PROJECT – DALE ADAMS ROAD

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
C. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

MR. DERON GEOUQUE 
65 

81 

95 
6:15 12 BREAK 103 
6:25 13 CLOSED SESSION 

 ATTORNEY-CLIENT MATTERS PER G. S. § 143-318.11(A)(3)
 LAND ACQUISITION PER G.S. § 143-318.11(A)(5)
 PERSONNEL MATTERS PER G. S. § 143-318.11(A)(1)

103 

6:35 14 POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 105 
6:40 15 ADJOURN 



Blank Page 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

August 5, 2025, Regular Meeting 
August 5, 2025, Closed Session 

1



DRAFT 
MEETING MINUTES 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2025 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, August 5, 2025, 
at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County Administration 
Building in Boone, North Carolina. 

1. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  The following were present: 

PRESENT: Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 
Emily Greene, Commissioner 
Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner 
Andrea Miller, County Attorney  
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

Commissioner Hodges offered a prayer and Commissioner Marsh led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Eggers presented the July 15, 2025, regular and closed session meeting minutes.  

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the July 15, 2025, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the July 15, 2025, 
closed session minutes as presented. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Eggers called for additions or corrections to the August 5, 2025, agenda. 

County Manager Geouque requested the following additions: 

• Agenda Item 13 to include the following:
C. Howard Knob Park Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services

2



D. Announcements

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve the August 5, 2025, 
agenda as amended. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

• Cindy Darcy, a resident of Powder Horn Mountain and former special education teacher,
expressed concern about the County’s construction of an emergency services
communications tower in her community. She cited issues with the scope and placement
of the project, potential health effects on residents due to its proximity, and possible
impacts on the environment and property values.

• Jill Williams, a resident of Powder Horn Mountain, also expressed concern about the
tower’s construction. She stated that when their POA Board met with the Stewart Simmons
Volunteer Fire Department, it was indicated that the tower would be a “small tower” not
exceeding 40 feet. She noted that the current plan for a 180-foot tower is significantly
different from her understanding of the original proposal. She requested that the Board halt
construction of the tower.

• Mark Laughlin, a member of the Powder Horn Mountain POA Board, said he was present
at the initial meeting with Doug Barry regarding the tower’s construction. He stated that
the POA Board was initially supportive of the project, but concerns arose after the County
began clearing the lot. He also requested that the Board halt construction, but if that was
not possible, he asked that measures be taken to ensure the tower is adequately screened
from view.

5. LUCKY DOG VINTAGE MARKET – USE OF HUMAN SERVICES LOT

Trevor Shue, organizer of the Lucky Dog Vintage Market, submitted a request to use the grassy 
area and parking lot at the Human Services Center for market events on select dates from August 
2025 through August 2026. The proposed dates did not conflict with Appalachian State University 
football schedules or the Watauga County Farmers’ Market. The rental rate remains $200 per 
event, consistent with previous use. Mr. Shue stated that vendor participation has increased from 
approximately 15 to 25 vendors. Market hours are planned from 11:00 AM to 6:00 PM, with 
vendors setting up from 9:30 AM to 7:00 PM. 

County Manager Geouque informed the Board that Ms. Mary McKinney of Just Love requested 
use of the same space on August 31, 2025, for an International Overdose Awareness Event. 

Chairman Eggers was in support of the 2025 dates for the Lucky Dog Vintage Market but deferred 
approval of 2026 dates at this time. 

3



Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, made a motion to approve the 2025 
dates for the Lucky Dog Vintage Market and to approve the August 31, 2025, date for Ms. 
McKinney’s event.  
 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
     Nay – 0 
 

[Clerk’s Note: Due to a scheduling conflict, the Lucky Dog Vintage Market date originally set for 
August 23, 2025, was changed to August 24, 2025, and the November 21, 2025 date was changed 
to November 23, 2025.] 
 
6.   BLUE RIDGE RISING RESOLUTION 
 

Mr. Ryan Robinson, Head of Corporate Responsibility and Community Partnerships for Mast 
General Store, requested the Board’s consideration of a resolution of support from the Blue Ridge 
Parkway Foundation. The Foundation is seeking endorsement from the 29 counties along the 
Parkway corridor as part of a regional effort to advocate for funding supporting unified county 
interests and Helene Recovery initiatives. To date, 23 of the 29 counties have adopted the 
resolution. 
 
Mr. Robinson explained that the resolution aims to demonstrate regional support and unity. He 
noted that adoption assists the Blue Ridge Parkway Foundation in lobbying efforts at the state level 
in Raleigh, North Carolina, and at the national level in Washington, D.C. He emphasized that the 
resolution requires no funding and is intended solely to raise awareness and show support. 
 
Chairman Eggers remarked that the resolution’s current language references "...including the 
towns of Buchanan, Fincastle, and Troutville in Botetourt County," which he believed was a 
holdover from Virginia. He requested that the language be amended to "...including the towns of 
Boone, Blowing Rock, Seven Devils, and Beech Mountain in Watauga County." 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, made a motion to approve the 
resolution pending the requested changes. 
 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
     Nay – 0 

 
7.   SDR FINAL DEBRIS REMOVAL COST 
 

Southern Disaster Recovery (SDR) completed all final punch list and quality control items. Mr. 
Chip Patterson of SDR reported that the company has removed approximately 130,000 cubic yards 
of material, with the final debris removal completed on June 19, 2025. Due to the volume of debris 
processed from the 2,000-item punch list and data lag in reporting, SDR requested that the final 
Not to Exceed (NTE) amount be set at $7,200,000, which is $750,000 more than the previously 
approved amount of $6,450,000. 
 
Commissioner Marsh recalled that SDR had previously submitted multiple requests to increase the 
NTE amount, and that during the last increase, Mr. Randy Thompson, Government Services 

4



Director at SDR, stated the NTE would not exceed approximately $6 million. He expressed 
concern that an additional increase is now being requested and asked how much of the $750,000 
increase would go to DebrisTech. 

Mr. Patterson explained that SDR’s invoices are based on DebrisTech’s monitoring records, but 
significant delays in the reporting process make it difficult to provide precise cost estimates for 
disaster debris removal. He emphasized that disaster debris cannot be estimated with complete 
accuracy. 

County Manager Geouque stated that 14 remaining sites have been identified and stressed the 
importance of ensuring all debris is cleared, noting that some sites initially thought to be complete 
were not. 

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, made a motion to table the request until 
SDR can confirm that the $7.2 million NTE amount will be final and that all remaining sites have 
been identified and cleared.  

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

Following the vote, Vice-Chairman Castle expressed his appreciation for SDR’s professionalism 
and work. 

8. WATAUGA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION – PROPOSED COUNTY VEHICLE
PURCHASE 
Mr. Jim Hamilton, County Extension Director, requested the purchase of a county-owned vehicle 
to support Extension staff travel for farm visits, workshops, meetings, and programming. He 
explained that Watauga County Extension (WCE) is a partnership between the County and NC 
State University, with funding from both sources. WCE currently leases a state-owned van at a 
cost that has increased from $307 to $460 per month (approximately $6,000 annually). Due to this 
increase and anticipated reductions in state travel funding, continuing the state lease is no longer 
cost-effective. 

Mr. Hamilton proposed using unencumbered funds from a currently vacant 4-H agent position to 
offset the cost of purchasing a vehicle, with a preference for a Toyota Sienna. He noted this was 
his first vehicle request since joining WCE in 2002 and that Watauga County is one of four 
counties still utilizing state-leased vehicles. 

Chairman Eggers asked whether an existing county vehicle could be used instead. County Manager 
Geouque suggested reviewing the county’s vehicle inventory before purchasing a new vehicle. Mr. 
Hamilton expressed concern that the extensive travel required to Raleigh and Buncombe County 
would be better served by a minivan rather than a small passenger van. Commissioner Marsh 
supported searching the county’s inventory first, while Vice-Chairman Castle noted that few, if 
any, vehicles in the inventory could handle that travel demand. County Manager Geouque 
mentioned two vans in Parks and Recreation that might be suitable. Commissioner Marsh 

5



expressed support for approving the purchase, and Vice-Chairman Castle suggested obtaining a 
quote from Modern Toyota before proceeding. 

Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the purchase of a 
vehicle using unencumbered funds from the vacant 4-H agent position, with any portion of the 
purchase price that exceeds those funds to be provided from the Administrative Contingency 
account. 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

9. MAINTENANCE MATTERS

A. Utility Vehicle Purchase Request

Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, presented a request to purchase a Bobcat UW56
utility vehicle equipped with a 72" snowplow and 68" angle broom. The equipment will be
used by the Maintenance Department for snow removal at the Courthouse parking lots and
parking deck during the winter months, and for general utility work throughout the year.

He recommended awarding the bid to Bobcat of Charlotte, the lowest responsive bidder.
Mr. Marsh explained that the initial quote of $77,230.50 included a 66" brush attachment
rather than the specified 68" angle broom. After correcting the quotes, Bobcat of Charlotte
remained the lowest bidder, with a revised price of $75,343.75. Adequate funds are
available in the current budget to cover the expense.

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the purchase
of the Bobcat UW56 with the 72” snowplow and 68” angle broom at the revised cost of
$75,343.75.

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

B. Contract Renewal for Recreation Center HVAC Monitoring

Mr. Marsh presented a request for a contract renewal with Johnson Controls for HVAC
monitoring and control at the Recreation Center. He explained that the current contract
expired on July 31, 2025, and due to the nature of the system, the service cannot be
competitively bid. Johnson Controls proposed a three-year renewal at a total cost of
$57,200, reflecting a $4,200 decrease from the previous contract.

Chairman Eggers asked Mr. Marsh to explain the services provided by Johnson Controls.
Mr. Marsh stated that Johnson Controls manages a system of devices, ensures proper
calibration, provides software upgrades, and services components.

Vice-Chairman Castle inquired about the possibility of eventually bringing the service in-
house. Mr. Marsh responded that the County’s size may not justify that, and qualified

6



personnel might be difficult to find. Vice-Chairman Castle suggested consulting 
Appalachian State University, which had successfully brought its system in-house. 
 
County Attorney Miller noted that contract revisions would be necessary before the County 
signs the renewal. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the contract 
renewal contingent upon the County Attorney’s recommended revisions. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
10.   EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 
 

A. Tower Construction and Site Modifications Contract 
 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, presented information regarding the Request 
for Proposals issued for the construction of a communications tower at the Rich Mountain 
site and the necessary modifications at the Aho and Buckeye sites to accommodate 
additional microwave dishes. Three proposals were received and reviewed. 
 
Mr. Holt recommended awarding the contract to K-Co Enterprises, Inc., the lowest 
responsive bidder, at a total cost of $396,909. He noted that both the County’s radio system 
consultant and the primary site contractor have prior experience with K-Co and expressed 
no concerns. Funding for this work is included in the overall project budget. 
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, motioned to approve the 
contract award to K-Co Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $396,909 for tower construction 
and site modifications. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
B. Emergency Services Facility Tower Engineering Contract 

 

Mr. Holt also presented information regarding the communications tower needed for the 
new Emergency Services Facility to connect with the public safety radio system. 
 
He reported that Engineered Tower Solutions (ETS), a vendor under State contract, 
provided a quote of $45,000 for engineering services and management of the administrative 
approval process. ETS has already completed a preliminary site walk and coordinated with 
Greene Construction, Inc. on the project. 

 
 
 
 

7



Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, made a motion to authorize 
the agreement with Engineered Tower Solutions for engineering services and 
administrative approval management in the amount of $45,000. 

 
VOTE:   Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 

C. Radio System Maintenance Contract Renewal 
 

Mr. Holt also presented information regarding the annual maintenance contracts for the 
County’s public safety radio systems, which are due for renewal. 
 
He reported that Mobile Communications America submitted a renewal quote totaling 
$111,512.31. The amount covers maintenance for the communications center systems 
($65,412.99), tower site equipment ($38,260.68), and mobile radio units ($7,838.64). This 
renewal continues the existing contract, with funds available in the budget for the expense. 
 
County Attorney Miller noted that a few contract revisions would be necessary prior to the 
County signing the renewal. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the contract 
renewal contingent upon the County Attorney’s final approval. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
Other Business - Powder Horn Mountain Tower 
 

At the conclusion of Mr. Holt’s presentation, Chairman Eggers asked questions regarding 
the communications tower at Powder Horn Mountain. Mr. Holt explained that initial 
discussions with Chief Barry of the Stewart Simmons Volunteer Fire Department 
established the tower height would be kept under 200 feet to avoid federal lighting 
requirements. He further detailed that environmental assessments (including endangered 
species checks and a microwave study) were completed as part of the approval process. 
Chairman Eggers also inquired about landscaping plans around the tower, to which Mr. 
Holt responded that landscaping is included in the project budget. 

 
11.   APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO FIRE APPENDICES COMMITTEE 
 

Mr. Jason Walker, Planning and Inspections Director, presented an update regarding the Fire 
Appendices Committee appointments. At the Board’s request during the previous meeting, Mr. 
Walker followed up with nominees from the Planning Board representing the surveyor, engineer, 
developer, and at-large categories. All nominees have confirmed their willingness to serve. A 
final list of recommended individuals was provided to the Board. 
 
The Board chose to make one change to the structure of the committee and appointed two at-
large members instead of one. Upon appointment, staff will notify the selected individuals 
accordingly. 

8



 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, made a motion to appoint the 
individuals listed in the table below. 
 

Role Members 

Two Commissioners 1. Braxton Eggers 
2. Ronnie Marsh 

Two Fire Chiefs 1. Chief Matt Aldridge, Foscoe Fire Dept. 
2. Chief Steve Marks, Cove Creek Fire Dept. 

County Manager Deron Geouque 

Fire Marshal Shane Garland 

Planning Director Jason Walker 

One Surveyor Donald McNeil 

One Engineer Mike Trew 

One Developer Bill Aceto 

Two At-Large Members 1. Jeff Fisher 
2. George Bartholomew 

 
 

 
VOTE:    Aye – 5 

   Nay – 0 
 
12.   SANITATION DEPARTMENT TRAILER PURCHASE REQUEST 
 

Operations Services Director Chris Marriott presented a request to purchase a 2026 Clement 
Monstar trailer for the Sanitation Department to use in hauling scrap metal and other materials. 
The trailer will replace an older, homemade unit that has become structurally unsound and unsafe 
for road use. 
 
Mr. Marriott explained that the Department hauls scrap metal weekly, including items such as 
refrigerators, dishwashers, and microwaves. Staff solicited and evaluated eight quotes from six 
vendors for both new and used trailers. Based on age, payload capacity, and overall value, staff 
recommended purchasing the 2026 Clement Monstar from Trailer Specialist, Inc. of Concord, NC, 
at a cost of $88,953. The vendor agreed to hold the trailer until August 6, 2025, pending Board 
approval. Upon purchase, the old trailer will be sold to a scrapyard for recycling. Sufficient funds 
are available in the FY 2026 Sanitation Department budget. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the purchase of the 
2026 Clement Monstar trailer from Trailer Specialist, Inc. in the amount of $88,953. 
 

VOTE:    Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
 
 

9



13.   MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 2 
 

Finance Director Deron Geouque presented a request for Board approval of Amendment 
No. 2 to the North Carolina Cash Flow Loan Agreement and the accompanying resolution. 
Under the original agreement, any FEMA reimbursements received by the County were 
required to be remitted to the State within five business days. 
 
Mr. Geouque explained that the proposed amendment modifies the repayment structure, 
allowing the County to repay the loan over a five-year period, rather than remitting funds 
immediately upon receipt. This change would allow the County to deposit FEMA 
reimbursements into an interest-bearing account until the repayment deadline, generating 
additional revenue. He further noted that the State may forgive the debt in the future, in 
which case retaining the funds until repayment is due would be beneficial; if funds were 
repaid early, they would be unlikely to be returned in the event of forgiveness.  
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve Amendment 
No. 2 to the North Carolina Cash Flow Loan Agreement and the associated resolution. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
B. Proposed Human Services Parking Lot and Parking Deck Agreement with Appalachian 

State University 
 

County Manager Geouque presented a request from Appalachian State University to renew 
the use agreement for the parking lot at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector and the parking 
deck at 140 N. Water Street to support pre- and postgame football operations. Two term 
options were proposed: a two-year agreement and a three-year agreement. 
 
Under either option, the University would pay the County $10,000 annually for the Human 
Services Lot and remit 50% of net revenue generated from game day parking at the parking 
deck. The University would be responsible for event security, towing unauthorized 
vehicles, providing portable restrooms, and returning the lots to their original or better 
condition after each event. The primary difference between the two options is the length of 
the term, with the University expressing interest in a longer arrangement. 
 
Chairman Eggers requested the following changes to the proposed agreements: 
 

• Remove the provision requiring the County to distribute parking passes, assigning 
distribution to the University. 

• Require the University to update County parking signs to reflect event restrictions. 
• Add a provision granting the County the right to audit the University’s parking 

revenue records. 
 
Commissioner Greene raised concerns regarding Thursday night football games, noting 
that the parking lots are used by County employees during the workweek. She suggested 

10



that if usage on Thursdays is permitted, the County will need to identify alternative options 
for employees. This could potentially include designating the lots as non-tailgating areas. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the two-year 
agreement contingent upon the requested revisions and final review by the County 
Attorney.  
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
C. Howard Knob Park Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 

 

During the Board meeting on July 15, 2025, the request to approve the WSP contract was 
postponed to allow the County Attorney to negotiate concerns with the vendor related to 
Paragraph 7 - “Limitation of Liability,” and Paragraph 18 - “Disputes,” specifically the 
requirement that all legal disputes be resolved in New York State. The County Attorney 
has since reviewed the updated contract and confirmed that the vendor’s revisions are 
acceptable. 
 
County Manager Geouque presented the item and clarified that funding for the project will 
come from the Watauga Tourism Development Authority and grant sources, with no direct 
financial obligation for the County. 
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Greene, made a motion to authorize 
the contract with WSP in the amount of $37,500 for construction materials testing services 
for the Howard Knob project. 
 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

 
D. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque informed the Board of two upcoming events: 
 
Middle Fork Greenway Ribbon Cutting 
 

The Watauga Arts Council, in partnership with the Blue Ridge Conservancy, invited the 
Board and community to a ribbon-cutting ceremony for the new section of the Middle Fork 
Greenway. The event is scheduled for Thursday, August 14, 2025, at 4:00 PM near 
Tweetsie Railroad at the underpass by the new split-rail fence. The ceremony will celebrate 
the trail’s newest segment and mural completion, with updates on corridor progress. 
 
AppHealthCare Grand Opening and 10th Anniversary 
 

AppHealthCare will hold a grand opening for their mobile health services and celebrate 
their 10th anniversary as a Community Health Center on Friday, August 8, 2025, from 
11:00 AM to 12:00 PM at the AppHealthCare Watauga Health Center, 126 Poplar Grove 
Connector, Boone. The event includes a ribbon-cutting, refreshments, a mobile unit tour, 
and remarks. 

11



County Manager Geouque asked Board members to notify him if they wished to attend the 
Middle Fork Greenway event and he would RSVP accordingly. 

This presentation was for informational purposes only; therefore, no action was required. 

14. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

There were no Commissioner comments. 

15. CLOSED SESSION

At 7:04 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, made a motion to go into 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to discuss attorney-client privileged matters, 
§ 143-318.11(a)(5) to consider matters related to land acquisition, and
§ 143-318.11(a)(1) to discuss personnel matters.

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

At 7:49 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Chairman Eggers, moved to resume the open 
meeting. 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

16. ADJOURN

At 7:50 PM, Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Chairman Eggers, moved to adjourn the meeting. 

VOTE:   Aye – 5 
   Nay – 0 

Braxton Eggers, Chairman 

ATTEST: Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 19, 2025, AGENDA 

13



Blank Page 

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Public Comment will last up to one hour, depending on the number of speakers. 

15



Blank Page 
 
 

16



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY – REPAIRS AND BID AWARD 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Ms. Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Director at the Blue Ridge Conservancy, will update 
the Board on repairs to the Middle Fork Greenway following damage sustained during Hurricane 
Helene. Most areas were repaired immediately to reopen the path; however, two larger segments 
remain: approximately 90 feet of greenway path at Mystery Hill, and the Payne Branch Park stream 
access and bank stabilization. FEMA has assessed and approved reimbursements for both projects. 
Staff has been working with Emergency Management on the FEMA requests. 

Construction documents have been obtained for both projects. Three quotes have been received 
for the Payne Branch Park Stream Repair, as follows: Brushy Fork Environmental – $100,000; DN 
Enterprises – $122,000; and NorthState Environmental – $129,756. Quotes for the Mystery Hill 
project are expected soon. 

Board action is requested to approve the lowest bid from Brushy Fork Environmental in the amount 
of $100,000 for the Payne Branch Park Stream Repair project. 

17



To: Watauga County Commissioners  

From: Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Director, Blue Ridge Conservancy 

Date: August 12, 2025 

Re: Middle Fork Greenway at Payne Branch Park Stream Repair from Hurricane Helene 

Segments of the Middle Fork Greenway sustained damage during Hurricane Helene. Most 
of the sites were repaired immediately after the storm to get the path open for use again.  
Two larger, more expensive segments still require repair: 90ft of greenway path at Mystery 
Hill, and Payne Branch Park stream access and bank stabilzation. FEMA has assessed and 
approved reimbursements on these two segments. I have been working with Will Holt at 
Emergency Management on the FEMA requests. 

We have obtained construction documents for both of these segments and have received 
three quotes on the Payne Branch project below. I should be receiving quotes from 
contractors on the Mystery Hill Section soon. I am requesting permission to move forward 
with the lowest bid to construct Payne Branch Park Stream Repair. I will come back once I 
have quotes for Mystery Hill. This  work should be finished before the trout moratium 
begins in October.  

Payne Branch Park Stream Repair: 
Contractor Base Bid 

Brushy Fork Environmental $100,000 
DN Enterprises $122,000 
NorthState Environmental $129,756 
Sincerely, 

Wendy Patoprsty 
Blue Ridge Conservancy 
Middle Fork Greenway Director 

18



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SDR FINAL DEBRIS REMOVAL COST (FOLLOW-UP) 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

At the August 5, 2025, meeting, the Board tabled Southern Disaster Recovery’s (SDR) request to 
increase the final Not to Exceed (NTE) amount for disaster debris removal from $6,450,000 to 
$7,200,000. This request reflected additional debris removal and punch list work beyond the prior 
approved amount. The Board requested confirmation that the $7.2 million NTE would be final and 
that all remaining debris sites had been identified and cleared. 

Since that meeting, staff has confirmed that there are a total of 12 remaining sites. Of these, three 
require remediation. Two of the three sites cannot currently be accessed, and one site, located on 
NC-194 at the Avery County line, will be cleaned up by SDR. All of these sites were included in 
the $750,000 increase to the NTE. (Note: Once approved, no more sites will be scheduled for 
cleanup and it will be the property owner’s responsibility.) 

Staff seeks direction from the Board. 

19



Blank Page 
 
 

20



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FY26 HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT – REVISED ALLOCATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The County’s FY26 Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) allocation has been 
finalized at $328,280, which is $7,492 more than originally projected. This increase results in a 
required local match of $36,476, an $832 increase from the original estimate, and is already 
included in the adopted FY26 County budget. The additional funds will be allocated to the Home 
Delivered Meals program. 

The revised service allocations are as follows: 

• In-Home Aide Level I: $83,089 (Match: $9,232)
• In-Home Aide Level II: $60,670 (Match: $6,741)
• Congregate Meals: $49,830 (Match: $5,537)
• Home Delivered Meals: $128,691 (Match: $14,299)
• Transportation: $6,000 (Match: $667)

Upon Board approval, the revised allocation will be incorporated into the Project on Aging FY26 
budget. 

Board action is requested to approve the revised FY26 Home and Community Care Block Grant 
(HCCBG) allocation in the amount of $328,280, with a required local match of $36,476, and to 
incorporate the revised allocation into Project on Aging’s FY26 budget. 

21



 Watauga County Project on Aging 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 

      Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 
        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 

DATE: August 12, 2025 

SUBJ: Allocation of FY26 Home and Community Care Block Grant Funds 

The Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) allocation for FY2026 was projected to 
be $320,788, which required a local match of $35,644.  The actual allocation is $328,280 
(+$7,492) which requires a local match of $36,476 (+$832).  The additional match is present in 
our FY26 County budget.  The additional funds will be allocated to Home Delivered Meals 
($7,492).  The revised allocation is as follows: 

HCCBG Service    HCCBG Allocation Match 
In-Home Aide Level I    $83,089  $9,232 
In-Home Aide Level II   $60,670 $6,741 
Congregate Meals    $49,830 $5,537 
Home Delivered Meals  $128,691           $14,299 
Transportation    $6,000    $667 

Upon approval, these funds will become part of the Project on Aging FY2026 budget. 

I plan to be present for discussion or questions. 

cc: Karin Bare, Administrative Assistant II 

22



July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 

Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

Agreement for the Provision of County-Based Aging Services 

This Agreement, entered into as of this 1st day of July, 2025, by and between the County of Watauga 
(hereinafter referred to as the "County") and the High Country Area Agency on Aging, (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Area Agency"). 

Witnesseth That: 

WHEREAS, the Area Agency and the County agree to the terms and conditions for provision of aging 
services in connection with activities financed in part by Older Americans Act grant funds, provided to 
the Area Agency from the United States Department of Health and Human Services through the North 
Carolina Division of Aging (DOA) and state appropriations made available to the Area Agency 
through the North Carolina Division of Aging, as set forth in a) this document, b) the County Funding 
Plan, as reviewed by the Area Agency and the Division of Aging, c) the Division of Aging Home and 
Community Care Block Grant Procedures Manual for Community Service Providers, d) the Division 
of Aging Service Standards Manual, Volumes I through IV, and, e) the Division of Aging Community 
Service Providers Monitoring Guidelines.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises, and mutual covenants and agreements 
hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. As provided in the Area Plan, community service providers specified by the County to
encourage maximum collocation and coordination of services for older persons are as follows:

Watauga County Project on Aging

a. The Community Service Provider(s) shall be those specified in the County Funding Plan on the
Provider Services Summary format(s) (DOA-732) for the period ending June 30 for the year
stated above. 

2. Availability of Funds. The terms set forth in this Agreement for payment are contingent upon
the receipt of Home and Community Care Block Grant funding by the Area Agency.

23



3. Grant Administration. The grant administrator for the Area Agency shall be Zack Green,
Area Agency on Aging Director. The grant administrator for the County shall be Deron
Geouque, Watauga County Manager.

It is understood and agreed that the grant administrator for the County shall represent the
County in the performance of this Agreement. The County shall notify the Area Agency in
writing if the administrator changes during the grant period. Specific responsibilities of the
grant administrator for the County are provided in paragraph seven (7) of this Agreement.

4. Services authorized through the County Funding Plan, as specified on the Provider Services
Summary format(s) (DOA-732) are to commence no later than July 1 of the state fiscal year
and shall be undertaken and pursued in such sequence as to assure their expeditious
completion.  All services required hereunder shall be completed on or before the end of the
Agreement period, June 30 of the state fiscal year.

5. Assignability and Contracting. The County shall not assign all or any portion of its interest in
this Agreement.  Any purchase of services with Home and Community Care Block Grant for
Older Adults funding shall be carried out in accordance with the procurement and contracting
policy of the community services provider or, where applicable, the Area Agency, which does
not conflict with procurement and contracting requirements contained in 45 CFR Part 75,
Subpart D-Post Federal Award Requirements, Procurement Standards.  Federal funds shall not
be awarded to any subrecipients who have been suspended or debarred by the Federal
government.  In addition, Federal funds may not be used to purchase goods or services costing
over $100,000 from a vendor that has been suspended or debarred from Federal grant
programs.

6. Compensation and Payments to the County. The County shall be compensated for the work and
services actually performed under this Agreement by payments to be made monthly by the
Area Agency.  Total reimbursement to the community service providers under this Agreement
may not exceed the grand total of Block Grant funding, as specified on the Provider Services
Summary format (DOA-732).

a. Interim Payments to the County
Upon receipt of a written request from the County, the Division of Aging, through the Area
Agency, will provide the County Finance Officer with an interim payment equivalent to
seventy percent (70%) of one-twelfth (1/12) of the County's Home and Community Care
Block Grant allocation by the 22nd of each month.

24



b. Reimbursement of Service Costs

Reimbursement of service costs is carried out as provided in Section 3 of the N.C. Division
of Aging Home and Community Care Block Grant Procedures Manual for Community
Service Providers, revised February 17, 1997.

c. Role of the County Finance Director
The County Finance Director shall be responsible for disbursing Home and Community
Care Block Grant Funding to Community Service Providers in accordance with procedures
specified in the N.C. Division of Aging Home and Community Care Block Grant Manual
for Community Service Providers, revised February 17, 1997.

d. Payment of Administration on Aging Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) Subsidy
NSIP subsidy for congregate and home delivered meals will be disbursed by the Division of
Aging through the Area Agency to the County on a monthly basis, subject to the
availability of funds as specified in Section 3 of the N.C. Division of Aging Home and
Community Care Block Grant Procedures Manual for Community Services Providers.
If through the U.S. Department of Agriculture Area Agency on Aging Elections Project, the
County elects to receive a portion of its USDA entitlement in the form of surplus
commodity foods in lieu of cash, the Area Agency will notify the County in writing of its
community valuation upon notification from the Division of Aging.  The delivery of
commodity and bonus foods is subject to availability.  The County will not receive cash
entitlement in lieu of commodities that are unavailable or undelivered during the
Agreement period.

7. Reallocation of Funds and Budget Revisions.  Any reallocation of Block Grant funding
between counties shall be voluntary on the part of the County and shall be effective only for the
period of the Agreement.  The reallocation of Block Grant funds between counties will not
affect the allocation of future funding to the County.  If during the performance period of the
Agreement, the Area Agency determines that a portion of the Block Grant will not be
expended, the grant administrator for the County shall be notified in writing by the Area
Agency and given the opportunity to make funds available for reallocation to other counties in
the Planning and Service Area or elsewhere in the state.

The County may authorize community service providers to implement budget revisions which
do not cause the County to fall below minimum budgeting requirements for access, in-home,
congregate, and home delivered meals services, as specified in Division of Aging budget
instructions issued to the County.  If a budget revision will cause the County to fall below
minimum budgeting requirements for any of the aforementioned services, as specified in
Division of Aging budgeting instructions issued to the County, the grants administrator for the
County shall obtain written approval for the revision from the Area Agency prior to
implementation by the community service provider, so as to assure that regional minimum
budgeting requirements for the aforementioned services will be met.

25



Unless community services providers have been given the capacity to enter data into the Aging 
Resources Management System (ARMS), Area Agencies on Aging are responsible for entering 
amended service data into the Division of Aging Management Information System, as specified 
in the N.C. Division of Aging Home and Community Care Block Grant Procedures Manual for 
Community Service Providers. 

8. Monitoring.  This Agreement will be monitored to assure that services are being provided as
stated in the Division of Aging Monitoring Policies and Procedures at
http://www.ncdhhs.gov/aging/monitor/mpolicy.htm. The monitoring of services provided under
this Agreement shall be carried out by the Area Agency on Aging in accordance with its
Assessment Plan and as specified in Sec. 308 of the AAA Policies and Procedures Manual.
Counties and community service providers will receive a written report of monitoring findings
in accordance with procedures established in Section 308.4.  Any areas of non-compliance will
be addressed in a written corrective action plan with the community service provider.

9. Disputes and Appeals.  Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Agreement
shall be identified to the designated grants administrator for the Area Agency.  In accordance
with Lead Regional Organization (LRO) policy, a written decision shall be promptly furnished
to the designated grants administrator for the County.

The decision of the LRO is final unless within twenty (20) days of receipt of such decision the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners furnishes a written request for appeal to the Director
of the North Carolina Division of Aging, with a copy sent to the Area Agency.  The request for
appeal shall state the exact nature of the complaint.  The Division of Aging will inform the
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of its appeal procedures and will inform the Area
Agency that an appeal has been filed.  Procedures thereafter will be determined by the appeals
process of the Division of Aging.  The state agency address is as follows:

Director 
North Carolina Division of Aging 
693 Palmer Drive  
2101 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-2101 

10. Termination for Cause.  If through any cause, the County shall fail to fulfill in a timely and
proper manner its obligations under this Agreement, or the County has or shall violate any of
the covenants, agreements, representations or stipulations of this Agreement, the Area Agency
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving the Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners written notice of such termination no fewer than fifteen (15) days prior to the
effective date of termination.  In such event, all finished documents and other materials
collected or produced under this Agreement shall at the option of the Area Agency, become its
property.  The County shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily performed under this Agreement.

26

http://www.ncdhhs.gov/aging/monitor/mpolicy.htm


11. Audit.  The County agrees to have an annual independent audit in accordance with North
Carolina General Statutes, North Carolina Local Government Commission requirements,
Division of Aging Program Audit Guide for Aging Services and Federal Office of Budget and
Management (OMB) Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200.

Community service providers, as specified in paragraph one (1), who are not units of local
government or otherwise subject to the audit and other reporting requirements of the Local
Government Commission are subject to audit and fiscal reporting requirements, as stated in NC
General Statute 143C-6-22 and 23 and OMB Uniform Guidance CFR 2 Part 200, where
applicable.  Applicable community service providers must send a copy of their year-end
financial statements, and any required audit, to the Area Agency on Aging.  Home and
Community Care Block Grant providers are not required to submit Activities and
Accomplishments Reports.  For-profit corporations are not subject to the requirements of OMB
Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200, but are subject to NC General Statute 143C-6-22 and 23
and Yellow Book audit requirements, where applicable.

Federal funds may not be used to pay for a Single or Yellow Book audit unless it is a federal
requirement.  State funds will not be used to pay for a Single or Yellow Book audit if the
provider receives less than $500,000 in state funds.  The Department of Health and Human
Services will provide confirmation of federal and state expenditures at the close of the state
fiscal year.  Information on audit and fiscal reporting requirements in accordance with
Administrative Code 09 NCAC 03M can be found at https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-
services/grants/grant-recipients

The following chart provides a summary of reporting requirements under NCGS 143C-6-22
and 23 and OMB Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200 based upon funding received and
expended during the service provider’s fiscal year.

Annual Expenditures Report Required to AAA Allowable cost 
for reporting 

Less than $25,000 in state 
or federal funds 

Certification form and State Grants Compliance 
Reporting <$25,000 
(Item #11, Activities and Accomplishments) does not 
have to be completed) 
OR Audited Financial Statements in compliance with 
GAO/GAS (i.e., Yellow Book). 

N.A. 

Greater than $25,000 and 
less than $500,000 in 
state funds or $750,000 in 
federal funds. 

Certification form and Schedule of Grantee Receipts 
>$25,000 and Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures 
OR Audited Financial Statements in compliance with 
GAO/GAS (i.e., Yellow Book) 

N.A. 

$500,000+ in state funds 
but federal pass through 
in an amount less than 
$750,000. 

Audited Financial Statement in compliance with 
GAO/GAS (i.e., Yellow Book) 

May use state 
funds, but not 
federal funds. 

27

https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants/grant-recipients
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants/grant-recipients


Annual Expenditures Report Required to AAA Allowable cost 
for reporting 

$500,000+ in state funds 
and $750,000+ in federal 
pass through funds. 

Audited Financial Statement in compliance with 
OMB Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200 (i.e., Single 
Audit) 

May use state 
and federal 
funds. 

Less than $500,000 in 
state funds and 
$750,000+ in federal pass 
through funds 

Audited Financial Statement in compliance with 
OMB Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200 (i.e., Single 
Audit) 

May use 
federal funds, 
but not state 
funds. 

12. Audit/Assessment Resolutions and Disallowed Cost.  It is further understood that the
community service providers are responsible to the Area Agency for clarifying any audit
exceptions that may arise from any Area Agency assessment, county or community service
provider single or financial audit, or audits conducted by the State or Federal Governments.  In
the event that the Area Agency or the Department of Health and Human Services disallows any
expenditure made by the community service provider for any reason, the County shall promptly
repay such funds to the Area Agency once any final appeal is exhausted in accordance with
paragraph nine (9).

The only exceptions are if the Area Agency on Aging is designated as a community service
provider through the County Funding Plan or, if as a part of a procurement process, the Area
Agency on Aging enters into a contractual agreement for service provision with a provider
which is in addition to the required County Funding Plan formats.  In these exceptions, the
Area Agency is responsible for any disallowed costs.  The County or Area Agency on Aging
can recoup any required payback from the community service provider in the event that
payback is due to a community service provider's failure to meet OMB Uniform Guidance CFR
2 Part 200, 45 CFR Part 1321 or state eligibility requirements as specified in policy.

13. Indemnity.  The County agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Area Agency, its agents,
and employees from and against any and all loss, cost, damages, expenses, and liability arising
out of performance under this Agreement to the extent of errors or omissions of the County.

14. Equal Employment Opportunity and Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance.  Both the
County and community service providers, as identified in paragraph one (1), shall comply with
all federal and state laws relating to equal employment opportunity and accommodation for
disability.

15. Data to be Furnished to the County.  All information which is existing, readily available to the
Area Agency without cost and reasonably necessary, as determined by the Area Agency's staff,
for the performance of this Agreement by the County shall be furnished to the County and
community service providers without charge by the Area Agency.  The Area Agency, its agents
and employees, shall fully cooperate with the County in the performance of the County's duties
under this Agreement.

28



16. Rights in Documents, Materials and Data Produced.  The County and community service
providers agree that at the discretion of the Area Agency, all reports and other data prepared by
or for it under the terms of this Agreement shall be delivered to, become and remain, the
property of the Area Agency upon termination or completion of the work.  Both the Area
Agency and the County shall have the right to use same without restriction or limitation and
without compensation to the other.  For the purposes of this Agreement, "data" includes
writings, sound recordings, or other graphic representations, and works of similar nature.  No
reports or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Agreement shall be the
subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the County.

17. Interest of the Board of Commissioners.  The Board of Commissioners covenants that neither
the Board of Commissioners nor its agents or employees presently has an interest, nor shall
acquire an interest, direct or indirect, which conflicts in any manner or degree with the
performance of its service hereunder, or which would prevent, or tend to prevent, the
satisfactory performance of the service hereunder in an impartial and unbiased manner.

18. Interest of Members of the Area Agency, Lead Regional Organization, and Others.  No officer,
member or employee of the Area Agency or Lead Regional Organization, and no public official
of any local government which is affected in any way by the Project, who exercises any
function or responsibilities in the review or approval of the Project or any component part
thereof, shall participate in any decisions relating to this Agreement which affects his personal
interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he is, directly or
indirectly, interested; nor shall any such persons have any interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement or the proceeds arising there from.

19. Officials not to Benefit.  No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of
America, resident Commissioner or employee of the United States Government, shall be
entitled to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefits to arise here from.

20. Prohibition Against Use of Funds to Influence Legislation.  No part of any funds under this
Agreement shall be used to pay the salary or expenses of any employee or agent acting on
behalf of the County to engage in any activity designed to influence legislation or
appropriations pending before Congress.

21. Confidentiality and Security.  Any client information received in connection with the
performance of any function of a community service provider or its subcontractors under this
Agreement shall be kept confidential.  The community service provider acknowledges that in
receiving, storing, processing, or otherwise handling any confidential information, the agency
and any subcontractors will safeguard and not further disclose the information except as
provided in this Agreement and accompanying documents.

29



22. Record Retention and Disposition.  All state and local government agencies, nongovernmental
entities, and their subrecipients, including applicable vendors, that administer programs funded
by federal sources passed through the NC DHHS and its divisions and offices are expected to
maintain compliance with the NC DHHS record retention and disposition schedule
(https://www.ncdhhs.gov/about/administrative-offices/office-controller/records-retention).  In
addition, the NC Department of Natural and Cultural Resources has developed a General
Records Schedule for Local Government Agencies as well as individual retention and
disposition schedules for local government agencies like county social service agencies and
local health departments.  Those schedules are posted at
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/local.

Retention requirements apply to the community service providers funded under this Agreement
to provide Home and Community Care Block Grant services.  By funding source and state
fiscal year, the NC DHHS record retention schedule lists the earliest date that grant records in
any format may be destroyed.  The State Archives provides information about destroying
confidential data and authorized methods of record destruction (paper and electronic) at
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/records-management-tools/faq#how-can-i-destroy-
records.

The NC DHHS record retention schedule is based on federal and state regulations and pertains
to the retention of all financial and programmatic records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and all other records supporting the expenditure of a federal grant award.  Records
legally required for ongoing official proceedings, such as outstanding litigation, claims, audits,
or other official actions, must be maintained for the duration of that action, notwithstanding the
instructions of the NC DHHS record retention and disposition schedule.

In addition to record retention requirements for records in any format, the long-term and/or
permanent preservation of electronic records require additional commitment and active
management by agencies.  The community service provider will comply with all policies,
standards, and best practices published by the Division of Aging regarding the creation and
management of electronic records.

30

https://www.ncdhhs.gov/about/administrative-offices/office-controller/records-retention
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/local
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/records-management-tools/faq#how-can-i-destroy-records
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/records-management-tools/faq#how-can-i-destroy-records


23. Applicable Law.  This Agreement is executed and is to be performed in the State of North
Carolina, and all questions of interpretation and construction shall be construed by the laws of
such State.

In witness whereof, the Area Agency and the County have executed this Agreement as of the
day first written above.

Watauga County 

Attest:              By: 

____________________________  __________________________________ 
Katie Hancock, Clerk   Braxton Eggers, Chair 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

High Country Area Agency on Aging 

Attest:              By: 

____________________________              ___________________________________ 
Zack Green, Director                 Julie Wiggins, Executive Director  
High Country Area Agency on Aging             High Country Council of Governments  

Provision for payment of the monies to fall due under this Agreement within the current fiscal year 
have been made by appropriation duly authorized as required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 

This instrument has been pre-audited and approved in the manner required by the Local Government 
Finance Control Act. 

By:  ________________________________________________________________ 
Julie Page, Finance Officer, High Country Council of Governments 

31



24. Payment to Community Service Providers by the Area Agency on Aging.  The
County authorizes the Area Agency on Aging, in lieu of the County Finance
Officer, to provide interim and reimbursement payments to community service
providers as prescribed in paragraphs 6(a) and (c) of this Agreement.  Services
applicable to this authorization are as follows:

     Community Service Provider    Service 

     Watauga County Project on Aging In-Home Aide 
Transportation 
Nutrition 

     This authorization by the County shall be in compliance with requirements set 
     forth in the North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  The County Finance 
     Officer shall establish controls to account for the receipt and expenditure of Home 
     and Community Care Block Grant Funds. 

32



llomc and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 
Watauga County Project on Aging DAAS-732 

County Funding Plan County: WATAUGA 
132 Poplar Grove Conn, Suite A Budi,:ct Period: July 2025 through June 2026 
Boone, NC 28607 Provider Services Summary Revision#: I Date: 8/12/2025 

A B C D E F G H I 

Serv. Delivery 

(Check One) Block Grant Funding Required Projected Projected Projected 
Local Net Service NSII' Total HCCBG Reimburse I-ICCBG Projected 

Services Direct Purchase Access ln-1 lome Other Total Match Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate* Clients Total Units 
Transportation (General) X $ 6,000 $ - $ - $ 6,000 $ 667 $ 6,667 $ - $ 6,667 479 $ 13.9094 25 2,383 
ln-l-lomc Aide-Level I - Home Management X $ - $ 83,089 $ - $ 83,089 $ 9,232 $ 92,321 $ - $ 92,321 2,983 $ 30.9532 100 13,687 
In-Home Aide-Level II - Personal Care X $ - $ 60,670 $ - $ 60,670 $ 6,741 $ 67,411 $ - $ 67,41 I 2,064 $ 32.6650 40 9,161 
Congregate Nutrition X $ - $ - $ 49,830 $ 49,830 $ 5,537 $ 55,367 $ 12,380 $ 67,747 5,904 $ 9.3782 200 15,475 
Home Delivered Meals X $ - $ 128,691 $ - $ 128,691 $ 14,299 $ 142,990 $ 18,556 $ 161,546 12,613 $ 11.3368 120 23,195 
Senior Center Operation $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - -

0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - -
0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - -
0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ . -
0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ . -
0 $ - $ - $ . $ - $ . $ - $ - $ - - $ - -
0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ . $ - $ - - $ - -
0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - -

0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ - -

Total $ 6,000 $ 272,450 $ 49,830 $ 328,280 $ 36,476 $ 364,756 $ 30,936 $ 395,692 24,042 ,:; �•:;;;,:;\·.'. 485 63,901 
*Adult Day Care & ,\dull Day llcallh Care l'rnj. Service Cost/Rate

ADC ADIIC 
{h.._ r ,:_,_, fl-> • -oDaily Care $33.07 $ 40.00 Certification ofrcquircd minimum local match availability. ;-7J � I J).l.i..r 

Administrative Required local match will be expended simultaneously Authorized Signature, Title Date 
with 131ock Grant Funding. Community Service Provider 

l'roj. Reimbursement Rate $33.07 $ 40.00 
Administrative % 0.00% 0.00% 

Signature, County Finance Oflicer Date Signature, Chairman, Board ofCon1missiom:rs Dale 

33



Blank Page 
 
 

34



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

A. Dodge Durango Fleet Purchase and Upfitting

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Watauga County Sheriff’s Office requests Board approval to purchase six (6) Dodge Durango 
AWD V6 SUVs from Ilderton Dodge at $41,490 each, for a total cost of $248,940. Funding for 
these vehicles is included in the Sheriff’s Office FY 2025–2026 operating budget. 

Additionally, the Sheriff’s Office requests approval to purchase the required upfitting equipment, 
including emergency lighting, sirens, partitions, and other patrol-related equipment, from 
Campbell-Brown, LLC at a cost of $7,030.69 per vehicle (including freight), for a total of 
$42,184.12. 

Board action is requested to approve the purchase of six (6) 2025 Dodge Durangos from Ilderton 
Dodge in the amount of $256,444.20 (includes taxes and tags) and upfitting from Campbell-
Brown, LLC in the amount of $42,184.12. 

35



36



37



38



39



40



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

B. Ford F-150 Fleet Purchase and Upfitting

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Watauga County Sheriff’s Office requests Board approval to purchase three (3) Ford F-150 
Special Service Vehicles from Parks Ford at $46,941.60 each, for a total cost of $140,824.80. 
Funding for these vehicles is included in the Sheriff’s Office FY 2025–2026 operating budget. 

Additionally, the Sheriff’s Office requests approval to purchase the required upfitting equipment, 
including emergency lighting, sirens, partitions, and other patrol-related equipment, from 
Campbell-Brown, LLC at a cost of $5,513.39 per vehicle, for a total of $16,540.17. 

Board action is requested to approve the purchase of three (3) 2025 Ford F-150 Special Service 
Vehicles from Parks Ford in the amount of $145,085.54 (includes taxes and tags) and upfitting 
from Campbell-Brown, LLC in the amount of $16,540.17. 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Blank Page 

52



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

C. Purchase of Dual-Band Police Radios

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The Watauga County Sheriff’s Office requests Board approval to purchase seven (7) dual-band 
police radios, including programming, from Two Way Radio of Carolina at a cost of $4,670 each. 
Funding for this purchase is included in the Sheriff’s Office FY 2025–2026 operating budget. 

Board action is requested to approve the purchase of seven (7) dual-band police radios from Two 
Way Radio of Carolina in the amount of $32,690.00.  

53



54



55



Blank Page 

56



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 

A. Hurricane Helene Update

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will provide an update on Hurricane Helene. 

This report is for informational purposes only; no action is required. 

57



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 

August 12th, 2025 

To: Board of Commissioners 

CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Katie Hancock, Clerk to the Board 

Subject: Helene Update 

Board of Commissioners, 

I would like to offer a brief update on the status of recovery in Watauga County from the Emergency 
Services perspective. A few key points: 

- Right-of-Way debris removal is complete. We have shared multiple concerns with overall progress
with the vendor. Staff have been validating the punchout list provided by SDR.

- Waterway debris removal with the Corps of Engineers (USACE) is complete. All eligible debris sites
have been completed and final closeout of the temporary debris sites has been approved by
NCDEQ. We are working to remediate a few remaining sites damaged by contractors.

- PPDR has started. The contract has been awarded to the same contractor who performed
waterway (Bering Strait) and they are using a previously certified debris site.

- Staff continues to coordinate weekly with USACE, Watauga County Soil and Water, NRCS, and
FEMA on debris management and future steps in restoring our waterways.

- The first batch of Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) projects have been approved by NRCS;
staff is coordinating with Soil and Water on an RFQ to bid these projects out.

- The NCEM Private Road and Bridge program is on the ground doing inspections in Watauga
County. At last report, we have 557 projects have been submitted with 537 of those already being
assessed by the PRB team. These projects serve 1,552 households. The deadline for registration
is August 31st.

- Hagerty Consulting is working with staff to complete PA projects. We currently meet weekly to
discuss progress and priorities and have meetings with FEMA every two weeks.

- The Multi-Agency Resource Center (MARC) has closed due to extremely low census.

Respectfully, 

William Holt, MPA, CEM, NREMT-P 
Emergency Services Director 

58



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

EMERGENCY SERVICES MATTERS 

B. EMS Fleet Equipment Purchase

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, is requesting funding in the amount of $438,411.78 
to purchase six (6) Power Pro 2 stretchers, four (4) spare batteries, and four (4) Power Load devices 
to outfit both the existing and newly ordered EMS fleet. This acquisition represents an upgrade 
and expansion of the equipment currently utilized by Watauga Medics, Inc. 

The ProCare agreement includes a comprehensive warranty covering parts, labor, technician 
travel, battery replacement, and annual preventative maintenance throughout the service life of the 
equipment. Appropriations for this expenditure will come from the accelerated payments from 
Appalachian State University on the old high school property.  

Board action is requested to approve the purchase of six (6) Power Pro 2 stretchers, four (4) spare 
batteries, and four (4) Power Load devices from Stryker Sales, LLC in the amount of $438,411.78. 

59



60



61



62



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report. There were no 
tax releases for the month of July. 

This item is presented for informational purposes only; therefore, no action is required by the 
Board. 

63



Monthly Collections Report

Watauga County

Current Month 
Collections

Current   FY 
Collections

Current FY 
Percentage

Previous FY 
Percentage

General County
Taxes 2025 0.00 0.00
Prior Year Taxes 55,992.60 0.00
Solid Waste User Fees 3,989.18 0.00

Total County Funds $59,981.78 $0.00

Fire Districts
Foscoe Fire 596.71 0.00
Boone Fire 1,389.39 0.00
Fall Creek Service Dist. 0.00 0.00
Beaver Dam Fire 294.68 0.00
Stewart Simmons Fire 890.93 0.00
Zionville Fire 573.78 0.00
Cove Creek Fire 740.38 0.00
Shawneehaw Fire 86.34 0.00
Meat Camp Fire 496.19 0.00
Deep Gap Fire 231.83 0.00
Todd Fire 0.00 0.00
Blowing Rock Fire 931.99 0.00
M.C. Creston Fire 0.00 0.00
Foscoe Service District 81.29 0.00
Beech Mtn. Service Dist. 0.00 0.00
Cove Creek Service Dist. 0.00 0.00
Shawneehaw Service Dist. 11.98 0.00

Total Fire Districts 6,325.49             -                      

Towns
Boone 6,095.81 0.00
Municipal Services 124.20 0.00

Total Town Taxes $6,220.01 $0.00

Total Amount Collected $72,527.28 $0.00
 

__________________________________Tax Collections Director

__________________________________Tax Administrator

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The reported
totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer

Monthly Report July 2025

64



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract – Board of Education Resolution (Follow-Up)

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

At the June 17, 2025, meeting, Dr. Leslie Alexander, Superintendent of Watauga County Schools, 
and Mr. Graham Lewis with Schneider Electric, presented a guaranteed energy savings contract 
proposal. This program would fund infrastructure and utility improvements through cost savings, 
with no direct cost to the County. At that time, the Board tabled the item to allow for additional 
discussion with the Board of Education and to receive further information. 

Following that meeting, the Board of Education and Schneider Electric provided the Board with 
State Energy Office template documents and additional reference data regarding guaranteed cash 
flows from similar projects. The Board of Education now requests the Commissioners’ 
concurrence to proceed with the RFP process for a guaranteed energy savings project and 
confirmation that any energy cost savings realized through the program will remain with the 
schools for reinvestment in infrastructure and utility upgrades. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board.  

65

https://www.deq.nc.gov/energy-climate/state-energy-office/utility-savings-initiative/guaranteed-energy-savings-performance-contracts


RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A GUARANTEED 
ENERGY SAVINGS CONTRACT BY THE WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the County of Watauga, North Carolina 
(the “County”) as follows: 
1. The Board hereby finds, determines and acknowledges that:

a) The Watauga County Schools Board of Education (the “School Board”) plans to enter into a
Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract pursuant to G.S. 143-64.17 et. seq. not to exceed $XXX for the
purpose of providing certain energy conservation measures authorized to reduce energy consumption
and/or energy-related operating costs (the “Project”);

b) The School Board intends to finance said Project by entering into an installment contract (the
“Contract”) pursuant to G.S. 143-64.17I and G.S. 160A-20, as amended;

c) The School Board’s Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract shall not exceed 20 years from the date of
the installation and acceptance by the governmental unit of the energy conservation measures
provided for under the Contract;

d) The energy conservation measures to be installed under the Contract are for existing buildings;
e) The energy savings resulting from the Project are expected to equal or exceed the total costs payable

under the Contract as evidenced through an evaluation performed by a third party reviewer, XXX on
behalf of the School Board;

f) The payments made under the Contract are not expected to require any additional appropriations to be
made by the Board to the School Board nor require any increase in taxes; and

g) The Board does not intend to reduce appropriations to the School Board based upon a reduction of
energy costs in a manner that would inhibit the ability of the School Board to make required
payments under the Contract, provided that the County is not bound in any manner to appropriate
funds to the School Board in an amount sufficient for the School Board to make such payments.

2. This resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly adopted by the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held on June 17, 2025. 

___________________________________________​ ___________________ 
Chairman, Watauga County Board of Commissioners Date 

66



Property of Schneider Electric 

at Watauga County Schools

Making an

67



Performance Contracting Overview

Budget before and after Capital Recovery and Reinvestment

Definition: “Guaranteeing utility savings and reinvesting the savings into facility improvements.”

Page 2Confidential Property of Schneider Electric |

Operations

Energy bill

Guaranteed 

savings

Operations

Energy bill

Payments

Guaranteed 

savings

BEFORE AFTER

68



Revenue Creation 

Measures

Cost Savings 

Capital / Maintenance 

Needs

Cost Savings 

Comprehensive 

Solution

What Kinds of Facility Improvements?

Energy Conservation

Measures
● LED Lighting

● BAS Optimization

● Water Conservation

● Building Envelope Upgrades

● Renewables

Major Building 

Improvements

● HVAC Upgrades

● Controls Upgrades

● Windows & Cosmetics

● Electrical Upgrades
69



Address Major Facility Needs: 

Take care of big-ticket items like boilers throughout all 

campuses, so that you can concentrate limited funding on 

other priority needs such as air-conditioning

Cut Costs & Demonstrate Financial Stewardship

Reduce operational costs by implementing energy efficiency 

measures and share responsibility of taxpayer dollars w/ 

community

One Trusted Partner:

Long-term partnership with a reliable expert that can join you 

along your district’s facilities journey

Provide New STEM Learning Opportunities for Students

Expose students to new career opportunities and provide 

unique, hands-on experiences for students 

Project Priorities & Goals

70



Public

Page 5Confidential Property of Schneider Electric |

$1.09M

$781K

Baseline Utility
Expenditure

Post-Project Utility
Expenditure

Annual Utility Impact

Utility Spend Utility Savings

28%
estimated 

reduction in 

utility costs

$308,000
Estimated Annual Savings

$5.6-$7.1M
In capital that can be 

reinvested over 20-year 

partnership to fund 

needed renovations

Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract - 
Projected Financial Impact

$4.2-$5.3M
In capital that can be 

reinvested over 15-year 

partnership to fund 

needed renovations
71



Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

• Mix of T8/T12 Lighting & LED

• Gyms converted to LED; various hallways 

were also converted to LED (school by 

School basis)

• 30W-40W lamps were observed in the 

non-LED areas

• Mix of LED and inefficient exterior lighting

Current Condition 

Lighting

• Convert remaining fixtures to LED (Potential of 

60%-75% savings on non-LED)

• Replace exterior fixtures with LED

• De-lamp appropriate areas

Recommendations

Payback 72



• 7 Schools w/ Boilers fired with Fuel Oil with 

many at or near the end of their useful life.

• All ES served by 2-pipe heating only system; 

few areas have spot cooling systems (DX, 

Window Units, Portable Units)

• HS is served by a 2009 Geothermal Heat 

Pump System.

Current Condition 

Boiler Upgrades

• Convert Fuel Oil Boilers to Propane; evaluate 

bringing Natural Gas to Parkway ES.

• Develop priorities of equipment to be 

upgraded

Recommendations

Payback
Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

73



• High School has SE control system and is 

in good working order

• Varying degree of standardization of 

setpoints (70-75 observed in cooling)

• Other schools have varying degree of 

controls from pneumatics to stand alone 

tstats to aquastats to control fans

Current Condition 

Building Automation

• Optimize sequences, setpoints, and 

schedules where applicable

• Identify and replace failed components

• Understand larger priorities of adding 

cooling to develop controls solution that 

can be expanded.

Recommendations

Payback
Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

74



• Solar PV

• Currently there is one ground mount 

panel at Cove Creek ES as part of a 

educational program, but no 

commercial-sized system exists.

• Based on the current analysis of the 

solar requirements of the two Utilities, 

there may be some opportunity for PV, 

but further evaluation is required.

•  Secondary Transformer Upgrades

• Mable ES – Electrical Infrastructure

• Building Envelope Improvements

Additional ECMs

75



General

SUCCESS STORY  |  Lexington City Schools, NC

Getting Caught Up on Decades of Deferred Maintenance

Update Infrastructure

Promote Sustainability Education Initiatives

Vision

•

Solutions

Lexington City Schools and Schneider Electric partnered to not only address 

critical infrastructure needs, but also implement transformative energy solutions 

that would generate savings for years to come.  Most importantly, we improved 

comfort for EC students in the classroom at South Lexington School and 

eliminated noisy distractions for many children at Southwest ES.

Results

Total 

infrastructure 

improvements

Estimated savings, 

incentives, & 

revenue over 19 

years

• 5 New Boilers, 1 Chiller, 1 Cooling Tower

• Reduction in Noise Pollution 

• LED Lighting District-Wide

• 21 Tons of Water Source Heat Pump 

Replacements

• Capital Funding Maximization

• $850,000 for 2 multi-zone air-

handlers

• ESSER II funds for district-wide bi-

polar ionization

• ESSER III $1.4m for HVAC needs

$7.03M $5.09M

76



Page 11

Project Milestones

o Get County Commissioner Support to Move Into Procurement

o Procurement Process

o Design Phase

o Construction

o Client Services Period

Gain Stakeholder Buy-In & Move to Procurement

making an

at Watauga County Schools

Looking Ahead – Next Steps 

77



78



79



80



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. NCDOT Project – Dale Adams Road Construction Easement

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

The NCDOT is requesting that the County provide a temporary construction easement for the 
replacement bridge located on Dale Adams Road, site of the Old Cove Creek School. This 
easement is necessary to complete the bridge construction. NCDOT will pay the County $375 for 
the temporary easement. The portion of property requested for the easement is of little value to the 
County and is currently not being utilized. 

Board action is required, contingent upon County Attorney approval, to accept the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation’s request for the temporary easement and the $375 for its use and 
granting. 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Social Services Board 

Reagan Breitenstein has been nominated for a second term on the Social Services Board. Her 
current term expires on August 30, 2025. 

The Watauga County Department of Social Services unanimously recommends Ms. Breitenstein’s 
reappointment for a second term. 

Volunteer Application for Advisory Committees – David Luther 

The County has received a volunteer application from Mr. David Luther of Boone, NC, expressing 
interest in serving on several local boards, including the Adult Care Home Community Advisory 
Committee, the Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee, and the Watauga County Board 
of Adjustment. 

Currently, there are three vacancies on the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee and 
two vacancies on the Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee. At this time, the Watauga 
County Board of Adjustment has no vacancies. 

Mr. Luther has extensive volunteer experience with senior care facilities and currently serves as a 
volunteer firefighter and EMT, regularly engaging with elderly and vulnerable populations. 

These are first readings; therefore, no action is required. 

95



 

    
   Watauga County 

  Department of Social Services 
SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 
Reagan Breitenstein , Chair 
Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
Tiffany Christian 
Matthew Rollins 
Tiffany Williams 
  

132 POPLAR GROVE CONNECTOR – SUITE C  
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8100 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262  

Fax 828-265-7638 

Tom Hughes 
Director 

 
 

TO: Watauga County Board of County Commissioners 
 
Date: August 1, 2025 
 
 
 
The Watauga County Department of Social Services unanimously recommends Reagan Breitenstein 
serve a second term.  First term expires August 30, 2025. 

96



97



98



99



100



101



Blank Page 
 
 

102



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 

AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney-Client Matters – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5) 
Personnel Matters – G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(1) 

103



Blank Page 

104



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 

105



 
Additional Information 
Presented During the 

Board Meeting 
 























Middle Fork Greenway 

Update
August 19, 2025



Welcome 
Center

Middle Fork Greenway Coming Soon 
Blowing Rock Sections (2025 – 2028)

Boone Gorge Park (2025-2026) 
Angler Park (2025-2028)



Greenway on the Ground 
2 miles of trail 



Three Pocket Parks    
(w/parking, trails, and picnic areas) 



Welcome 
Center

Future BR 
Brewing 

Greenway on the Ground Tweetsie 
Underpass Completed Fall 2024



Welcome 
Center

MFG Update
Tweetsie Underpass  

Post 
hurricane 

Today



Welcome 
Center

Post 
Hurricane

We were able to salvage the bridge 
and this is it August 2025



Welcome 
Center

Volunteers and 

Contractors have put the 

trail back together



Welcome 
Center

Two segments left to be 

repaired 
2014 after it was just constructed 2024 after hurricane

Mystery Hill Underpass 

Payne Branch Park Stream Access



Al.        
 
PROJECT PROPOSAL/CONTRACT 
 
PROJECT:  PAYNE BRANCH POST HELENE REPAIR 
 
CLIENT:  c/o: Ms. Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Director,  

Blue Ridge Conservancy 
  wendy@blueridgeconservancy.org 
  828.264.2511 
  and 

Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 

   
 
DATE:   August 19, 2025 
 
Services:  
On September 27, 2024 the High Country experienced devastating flooding, damaging homes 
and property. The Payne Branch dam removal project was also significantly affected by this 30+ 
inch rain event. This proposal is specific to construction services associated with the repair of 
this ~1,000 foot project reach to allow safe access of this recreational area.  
 
Currently, the river left streambank of the Middle Fork New River (MFNR) has considerable 
erosion that pedestrians are using for recreational access with ~6-10 foot vertical earthen banks. 
The goal of this project is to utilize/re-arrange on-site/existing boulders to help to stabilize this 
erosive bank and re-build the two access point boulder steps that recreators use to access the 
river.  
 
This estimate includes minimal materials, no boulders, only erosion control and planting 
material. Two large track excavators are proposed to be used over the course of two weeks to 
repair this MFNR area. 
 
Schedule: Once approved, BFEC will add the project to the construction queue. Ideal 
construction period would be winter 2025 or spring 2026. 
 

Lump Sum Cost:  
 

• Total Lump Sum contract amount                =  $100,000.00 
             

 
Total Contracted Amount   =  $100,000.00 

 Providing Sound Environmental Solutions 
 

10565 Highway 421 S 
Trade, TN 37691 

ph/fax: 423.727.4476 
adam@bfec.org 

mailto:wendy@blueridgeconservancy.org
mailto:Deron.Geouque@watgov.org


 
• Client agreed to pay within 30 days of completion. 

 
Notes: 

• This proposal is valid for 30 days from submittal. 
• The client allows BFEC staff/equipment access to the property. 
• BFEC will provide the client our Certificate of Insurance available upon request once 

contract is executed. 
 
Respectfully Submitted: Brushy Fork Environmental Consulting, Inc. by Adam Williams, President  
 
 

 
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

 
SECTION 1: SCOPE OF WORK 
 
It is understood that the scope of work defined in the Proposal is based on the information provided by Client.  
If this information is incomplete or inaccurate, or if unexpected conditions are discovered, the scope of work 
may change, even as the work is in progress.  If the Client requests additional services or when a change in the 
scope of work or time schedule is necessary, a written amendment to the Agreement shall be executed by the 
Client and BFEC as soon as is practicable and consent to such amendments shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
SECTION 2: BILLING 
 
The client hereby certifies that he/she will make payment to BFEC within 30 days of receiving invoice at project 
completion. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, subsequent invoicing will institute a 5% interest rate added 
monthly to the contract amount. In the event of default the prevailing party resulting in litigation under 
contract will provide for all costs including attorney’s fees. 
 
SECTION 3:  CLIENT DISCLOSURES 
 
The Client shall notify BFEC of any reasonably known or suspected hazardous substances which are or may be 
related to the services to be provided. If such disclosure is made after the execution of this Agreement, or if 
hazardous substances are discovered after services are undertaken, BFEC may, at its discretion, discontinue its 
services.  In the event that the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section, the Client shall pay BFEC for 
services rendered to that date.  
 
SECTION 4:  INDEMNIFICATION AND WAIVER 
 
Client waives any claim against BFEC and its subcontractors or agents, and agrees to defend, indemnify and 
hold BFEC harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly arising from procedures associated 
with subsurface exploration activities or discovery of hazardous materials or suspected hazardous materials 
unless any such claim or liability arises out of the negligence or intentional misconduct of BFEC.  In addition, 
Client agrees to compensate BFEC for any time spent or expenses incurred by BFEC in defense of any such claim 
with compensation to be based upon BFEC's prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy unless 
any such claim or liability arises out of the negligence or intentional misconduct of BFEC.  BFEC waives any claim 
against Client and its subcontractors or agents, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Client harmless from 
any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly arising out of BFEC’s negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
BFEC shall not be responsible for bodily injury and property damage or losses arising directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part, from acts by the Client, its employees, agents, staff, consultants or subcontractors employed 
by it or by any other person or combination of persons.   
 
SECTION 5:  TERMINATION 



 
Client or BFEC may terminate this Agreement for breach of this Agreement, or for any other reasons which may 
arise.  In the event of termination, the party effecting termination shall so notify the other party, and 
termination will become effective upon receipt of the termination notice.  Irrespective of which party shall 
affect termination or the cause therefore, BFEC shall render to Client a final invoice and Client shall 
immediately remunerate BFEC for services rendered and costs incurred. Services shall include those rendered 
up to the time of termination, as well as those associated with termination itself, such as demobilizing, 
modifying schedules and reassigning personnel.   
 
SECTION 6:  SEVERABILITY 
 
Any provision of this Agreement later held to violate a law or regulation shall be deemed void, and all remaining 
provisions shall continue in force. 
 
SECTION 7:  SURVIVAL 
 
All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all provisions of this Agreement allocating 
responsibility or liability between the Client and BFEC shall survive the completion of services and the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
 
Acceptance Of Proposal: 
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. 
 
 
 
 
Signature:          Date:     
 
 



 
Notice to Proceed Update 

 
This Contract Amendment, made and entered into this 19th day of  
August, 2025, by and between Watauga County, NC hereinafter termed the “Owner”, 
and Southern Disaster Recovery, LLC,(SDR) hereinafter termed the “Contractor”. 
 
WITNESSETH            
  
WHEREAS, due to the devastating effects of Hurricane Helene, the Owner issued a 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) to the Contractor on the 3rd of October 2024 consistent with the 
North Carolina Department of Public Safety contract for Disaster Debris Removal 
Services. 
 
WHEREAS, the Not to Exceed mechanism was placed in the contract for elected and 
senior appointed official visibility on the project and  
 
WHEREAS, the current SDR Not to Exceed amount is $6,450,000 and    
 
WHEREAS, operation conditions changed and right of way punch list work needs to be 
finished 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Increase the Not to Exceed amount by $750,000.00 in order to complete the 
County’s right of way debris removal.  

 
All other terms and conditions of the original Contract Agreement remain unchanged. 
                 
 
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  SOUTHERN DISASTER RECOVERY, LLC 
 
 
By:  __________________________                By:  __________________________ 
 
Title: _________________________                Title: _________________________ 
 
Date:  ________________________                Date:  ________________________ 

http://www.southerndr.com/

	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	3.   Approval of the August 19, 2025 Agenda
	4.   Public Comment
	5.   Middle Fork Greenway - Repairs and Bid Award
	6.   SDR Final Debris Removal Cost (Follow-Up)
	7.   FY26 Home and Community Care Block Grant - Revised Allocation
	8. Sheriff's Office Matters
	A.   Dodge Durango Fleet Purchase and Upfitting
	B.   Ford F-150 Fleet Purchase and Upfitting
	C.   Purchase of Dual-Band Police Radios

	9.   Emergency Services Matters
	A.   Hurricane Helene Update
	B.   EMS Fleet Equipment Purchase

	10.   Tax Matters
	A.   Monthly Collections Report

	11.   Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.   Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract - Board of Education Resolution (Follow-Up)
	B.   NCDOT Project - Dale Adams Road Construction Easement
	C.   Boards and Commissions

	12.   Break
	13.   Closed Session
	14.   Possible Action after Closed Session
	Additional Information Presented During the Board Meeting



